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Subject: FW: Martin County 24-03ESR Proposed
Date: Friday, October 18, 2024 2:39:38 PM
Attachments: image001.png

 
 
Paul Schilling
Director
Growth Management Department
Martin County Board of County Commissioners
772-288-5473
 

From: Plan_Review <Plan.Review@dep.state.fl.us> 
Sent: Friday, October 18, 2024 2:36 PM
To: Paul Schilling <pschilli@martin.fl.us>; DCPexter@commerce.fl.gov
Cc: Plan_Review <Plan.Review@dep.state.fl.us>
Subject: Martin County 24-03ESR Proposed
 

To:  Paul Schilling, Growth Management Department Director
 
Re:  Martin County 24-03ESR – Expedited State Review of Proposed Comprehensive Plan
Amendment
 
The Office of Intergovernmental Programs of the Florida Department of Environmental Protection
(Department) has reviewed the above-referenced amendment package under the provisions of
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes (F.S.). The Department conducted a detailed review that focused on
potential adverse impacts to important state resources and facilities, specifically: air and water
pollution; wetlands and other surface waters of the state; federal and state-owned lands and interest
in lands, including state parks, greenways and trails, conservation easements; solid waste; and
water and wastewater treatment.
 
Based on our review of the submitted amendment package, the Department offers the following
technical assistance:
 
The St. Lucie River and Estuary (STLU) Basin Management Action Plan (BMAP) outlined by
403.067(7), F.S., and adopted by secretarial order, and the Lake Okeechobee (OKEE) BMAP
outlined by 403.067(7), F.S., and adopted by secretarial order, identify and frame actions to
address and restore impaired state waters. The Clean Waterways Act (Chapter 2020-150, Laws of
Florida) further refines actions taken by the BMAPs. The location of the proposed project is within
the C-44 basin of the STLU and OKEE BMAPs, which is currently designated as a high priority
area for restoration plans. Activities associated with these land use changes have the potential to
impact water quality. Appropriate measures should be taken to minimize any potential additional
nutrient loadings to the St. Lucie River and the Lake Okeechobee watersheds. These measures
include the proper treatment and disposal of wastewater in accordance with BMAP requirements,
implementation of current and future onsite sewage and disposal system (OSTDS) prohibitions,
stormwater controls, and the implementation of adequate sediment and erosion control practices to
mitigate any groundwater or surface water impacts. Any additional nitrogen and phosphorus
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loading to the basin will be evaluated and may require additional restoration actions by the County.
 
The Department is providing technical assistance comments consistent with Section 163.3168(3),
F.S. The comments will not form the basis of a challenge. Please submit all future amendments by
email to Plan.Review@FloridaDEP.gov. If your submittal is too large to send via email or if you
need other assistance, contact Lindsay Weaver at (850) 717-9037.
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TREASURE COAST REGIONAL PLANNING COUNCIL 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
 
To: Council Members                  AGENDA ITEM 4B7       

                         
From: Staff 
 
Date: October 11, 2024   
 
Subject:  Local Government Comprehensive Plan Review 
 Draft Amendment to the Martin County Comprehensive Plan 
 Amendment No. 24-03ESR 
 
Introduction 
 
The Community Planning Act, Chapter 163, Florida Statutes, authorizes the regional planning 
council to review local government comprehensive plan amendments prior to their adoption. The 
regional planning council review and comments are limited to adverse effects on regional 
resources or facilities identified in the Strategic Regional Policy Plan (SRPP) and 
extrajurisdictional impacts that would be inconsistent with the comprehensive plan of any 
affected local government within the region. Council must provide any comments to the local 
government within 30 days of the receipt of the proposed amendments and must also send a copy 
of any comments to the state land planning agency. 
  
The amendment package from Martin County was received on September 25, 2024 and contains 
one amendment to the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) of the County’s Comprehensive Growth 
Management Plan (CGMP). This report includes a summary of the proposed amendment and 
Council comments.  
 
Summary of Proposed Amendment 
 
The proposed amendment revises the future land use designation on ±167 acres from 
Agricultural and Agricultural Ranchette to Industrial. The subject property is located between 
Interstate 95 and SW 84th Avenue, on the south side of SW Martin Highway, adjacent to the 
Martingale Commons Planned Unit Development and Interstate 95. The site is located at an I-95 
interchange and the major roadway closest to the subject property is SW Martin Highway, which 
is classified as a major east-west arterial road and provides access to the property.  
 
The County staff report notes that the subject 167 acres previously received site plan and plat 
approval as a subdivision consisting of Agricultural and Agricultural Ranchette lots called 
Martingale Estates. Adjacent land use designations include Agricultural to the south and west; 
Agricultural Ranchette and Rural Density to the north; and Agricultural Ranchette to the east. It 
is noted that concurrent with this FLUM amendment are proposed text amendments for this 
property to authorize extension of water and sewer services to the property, create a Freestanding 
Urban Service District, and place restrictions on development. 
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According to the County staff report, Industrial future land use designation is intended for the 
Primary Urban Service District and this site is approximately 4 miles from the Primary Urban 
Service District, and water and sewer service is not currently available to the subject site. 
However, the CGMP does allow Freestanding Urban Service Districts which feature only 
industrial development.  
 
The County staff report states that the proposed FLUM amendment provides an opportunity to 
meet the nonresidential needs for residents in the area. While a 2023 Commercial and Industrial 
Land Analysis concludes that the County has a sufficient inventory of commercial and industrial 
land within the unincorporated areas for the present and near future, the study also notes 
projection methods appear much less useful than they have been in the past. Changes in the 
marketplace like e-commerce could greatly reduce the need for both developed and undeveloped 
commercial land while increasing the demand for logistics centers on industrial land.  
 
An analysis of public services concludes that the proposed FLUM Amendment does not exceed 
level of service criteria for solid waste facilities nor will it diminish level of service for 
fire/public safety/EMS services. Since the Industrial designation will not place demands on 
parks, recreation, or educational facilities, the proposed amendment will not reduce level of 
service capacity for those services. With respect to traffic, the county’s Traffic Engineering 
Administrator indicates that staff cannot provide a “positive evaluation,” meaning there is not 
sufficient roadway capacity planned in the adopted long-range capital facility plans of the 
CGMP, and recommended that language be added to Policy 14.1C.5.(2)(e) requiring capacity 
improvements to SW Martin Highway between SW Allapattah Road and SW Martin Downs 
Boulevard in order to mitigate the impacts of development. Correspondence from the County’s 
Utilities Department states that there needs to be an evaluation of plant and infrastructure 
capacity that will be required to serve this project. In addition to customary capital facility 
charges, the developer may be required to offset impacts through providing well sites, wells, 
transmission mains, and/or treatment plant components.   
 
Regional Impacts 
 
No adverse effects on regional resources or facilities have been identified. 
 
Extrajurisdictional Impacts 
 
Council requested comments from local governments and organizations expressing an interest in 
reviewing the proposed amendment on September 30, 2024. No extrajurisdictional impacts have 
been identified.  
 
Conclusion 
 
No adverse effects on regional resources or facilities and no extrajurisdictional impacts have 
been identified. The County is encouraged to take measures to ensure that adequate roadway 
capacity is available to serve development associated with this future land use map amendment 
concurrent with construction on the property, including consideration and analysis of changes 
that this amendment may encourage in the other quadrants of the intersection.  
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Recommendation 
 
Council should approve this report and authorize its transmittal to Martin County and 
FloridaCommerce.  
 
Council Action – October 18, 2024   
 
Councilmember Davis, Gubernatorial Appointee from Palm Beach County, moved approval of 
the staff report. Vice Mayor Langowski from the City of Westlake seconded the motion, which 
carried unanimously. 
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From: Hymowitz, Larry
To: dcpexter@commerce.fl.gov; Paul Schilling
Cc: Clyde Dulin; Samantha Lovelady; Lisa Wichser; Ricardo Vazquez; Williams, Jana; Carver, Jennifer; Krane, John;

Martinez, Cesar; Peters, Victoria; Walia, Kent; Bush, Lois; Kareiva, Ronald; Wong, Chon; Norat, Tony; Budhu,
Kelly; Stephanie Heidt

Subject: Martin County 24-3 ESR - FDOT District Four Review
Date: Thursday, October 24, 2024 4:54:34 PM
Attachments: image001.png

image002.png
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Pursuant to Secon 163.3184(3), Florida Statutes (F.S.), in its role as a reviewing agency
as identified in Sections 163.3184(1)(c) and 163.3184(4)(c), F.S., the Florida Department
of Transportation (FDOT) reviewed the proposed Martin County 24-03ESR (CPA 23-10)
comprehensive plan amendment relating to the Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use
Map for the Martin Commerce Park, to change the subject ±167 acres from Agricultural
and Agricultural Ranchette to Industrial.  This amendment is being considered
concurrently with Text amendment, CPA 23-09 (24-2ESR) Martin Commerce Park LLC
Text, proposed for this property to extend water and sewer service, create a
Freestanding Urban Service District, and place restrictions on development.
 
FDOT is providing the following technical assistance comments and recommendations
consistent with Section 163.3168(3), F.S. These technical assistance comments are
intended to strengthen the County’s comprehensive plan to foster a vibrant, healthy
community and are designed to support the Department of Commerce
(FloridaCommerce) in its consistency determination with the Community Planning Act in
Chapter 163, Part II, F.S.
 
Technical Assistance Comment #1
 
In accordance with Section 163.3180(5)(h)1.a, F.S., consultation with FDOT is required
for comprehensive plan amendments that affect the Strategic Intermodal System (SIS).
We have no record of meeting with Martin County staff prior to submittal of this
amendment.  The purpose for such consultation with the Department is to identify
important state resources and facilities that may be adversely impacted in the future if
the amendments are adopted, discuss analysis methodology, and potential mitigation
strategies for the local government to consider as part of the amendments.
 
This SIS consultation should normally include the applicant and their traffic consultant
and involve a discussion of the traffic methodology to be used for plan amendment
traffic analyses. The analysis for this amendment, based on the maximum development
potential of the proposed land use designations, is inconclusive regarding adverse
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impacts to the SIS and transportation facilities of state importance (Martin Highway/SR-
714) due to issues with the traffic impact analysis.
 
Recommendation for Technical Assistance Comment #1
 
The Department recommends that the County conduct future consultations with FDOT
when necessary, per Section 163.3180(5)(h)1.a, F.S. This type of consultation should be
coordinated early to provide opportunities to discuss best planning practices, and
opportunities to contribute to access management and traffic methodology discussions
prior to transmittal of future amendments that have the potential to adversely impact
facilities on the SIS.
 
Technical Assistance Comment #2
 
The amendment identifies projected transportation system levels of service but does not
appear to properly identify system needs based upon the future land use map and the
projected integrated transportation system pursuant to 163.3177(6)(b)1(d), F.S.
Furthermore, the amendment does not appear to identify how the local government will
correct existing facility deficiencies, meet the identified needs of the projected
transportation system, and advance the purpose of this paragraph and the other
elements of the comprehensive plan pursuant to 163.3177(6)(b)1(e), F.S.
 
The Department has identified important state resources and facilities that may be
adversely impacted if the amendments are adopted. This was determined by reviewing
the CPA 23-10, Martin Commerce FLUM
Amendment Staff Analysis, particularly the Interoffice Memorandum dated March 5,
2024 (amendment package page #1514), and the Traffic Impact Analysis (TIA) for the
Martin Commerce Park Land Use Plan Amendment by O’Rourke Engineering & Planning
(amendment package page #1575).  The adversely impacted facilities include State
Road 714 (Martin Highway) from I-95 to Citrus Boulevard and potentially, impacts to
portions of the I-95/State Road 714 interchange.
 

State Road 714 (I-95 to Citrus Boulevard) – The Martin County Interoffice
Memorandum indicates there is not sufficient roadway capacity planned in the
adopted long-range capital facility plans of the Comprehensive Growth
Management Plan to support the transportation facility needs of the proposed
development at the adopted level of service (LOS).  
 
The Department identifies a number of concerns with how the TIA analyzes traffic



for the proposed development.  For instance, the latest available capacities from
the Martin County 2023 Roadway Level of Service Inventory Report were not used
for the analyses in the TIA.  Per Section 5.4.B.(Analysis and LOS standards) of the
Comprehensive Plan Transportation Element, the generalized tables are found in
the FDOT's latest Q/LOS Handbook and are incorporated herein by reference.
 This updated version of the report incorporates context classification into the
determination of roadway capacities.  There is also a discrepancy between the
County’s listed context classification of C3R (Suburban Residential) for SR-714
from I-95 to Citrus Boulevard and the Department’s Project Level Context
Classification of C2 (Rural). 
 
Justifications for the C2 context classification include the following.
 

State Road 714 has a Federal Functional Classification of Rural Principal
Arterial (Other).
State Road 714 is partially outside of the draft 2020 FHWA Urban Area
Boundary.   
The Department’s designation stems from an analysis of the eight primary
measures and six secondary measures, as included in the FDOT Context
Classification Guide, pdf page 24
(https://nflroads.com/CS/Context%20Classification%20Guide%202022_lo
-res.pdf).  The analysis is available if requested.

 
The difference in Context Classification impacts the service volume capacity for
roadways.  The C2 context classification established by the Department results in
a 730 vehicle peak hour peak direction capacity at LOS D vs. the 1,160 vehicle
capacity from the TIA (1,070 from the FDOT 2023 Multimodal Quality/Level of
Service Handbook) applicable to the C3R context classification.  It is unclear how
context classifications used by the County in the Martin County 2023 Roadway
Level of Service Inventory Report were determined.  Using the C2 capacity for
State Road 714, this roadway will operate with a failing LOS.  There are no
projects in the Martin Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 2045 Long-
Range Transportation Plan (LRTP) to expand this roadway section from two to four
lanes.  The County’s 2045 Transportation Map Roadway Lanes (Figure 5-5C) does
not identify any capacity needs east of the project driveway to Citrus Boulevard.
 
I-95 / State Road 714 Interchange (SIS facility) - There is insufficient information in
the TIA to determine if adverse impacts to the SIS will result from the
amendment.  The I-95 Treasure Coast Multimodal Master Plan (2020) identifies
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the need for capacity improvements and an urbanization of the interchange.  Any
funding would be slow to occur and is estimated to occur in the 2035-2040 time
band of the SIS Cost Feasible Plan 2035-2050 (2024 Edition).
 
Additional technical comments regarding the TIA include the following:
 

A.       Roadway Network (PDF page 92): According to FDOT's 2024 Multimodal
Transportation Impact Analysis (MTIA) Handbook, a Comprehensive Plan
Amendment’s (CPA) MTIA should identify all state-maintained roadways
and SIS facilities located within a three-mile radius from the parcel(s)
affected by the CPA. Please include link analysis for I-95 segments north
and south of SR-714/Martin Highway.

B.       Trip Generation, Table 2 (PDF page 94): Please justify the 10% pass-by or
remove.

C.      Project Assignment (PDF page 96): The report notes that “the study area
was defined as the area upon which the project traffic represents 2% or
more on the roadway link or the immediately adjacent link.” Martin County
Comprehensive Plan’s Transportation Element Section 5.6 Policy 5.2A.7
(2) (f) states “The project has de minimis traffic impacts (defined as an
impact that would not affect more than 1 percent of the maximum volume
of the affected transportation facility at the adopted level of service) …”.
Please provide clarification or revise the percent impact analysis
accordingly.

D.      Five Year Analysis – 2028, Long Range Analysis 2040/2045 (PDF page
96): Analysis and appendix show that the 2022 volumes from Martin
County Roadway Level of Service Inventory Report were used. However,
the write-up notes 2021 volumes were used. Please clarify or revise as
needed.

E.        Trip Distribution (PDF page 97): For an industrial use facility, most of the
trips are expected to be longer distance. Some notable comments are
below:

·       Given the location of the development relative to I-95, 20% each to
north and south on I-95 appears to be low.

·       Eight percent (8%) total on the Turnpike ramps appear to be low.
·       Fifteen percent (15%) assigned to Citrus Boulevard/SW Newfield

Parkway appear to be high.



F.        Link Analysis (PDF pages 99 and 101): Martin County’s proposed
development projects database shows several approved and in-review
developments in the vicinity of the site. A comprehensive review of all
these developments should be completed and their trips should be
included as committed trips for the “background” traffic.

G.      Link Analysis – 5 Year, Table 5 (PDF page 99): Please double check the
growth rate for SR-714/Martin Highway from Citrus Boulevard to Florida's
Turnpike, as it appears to be incorrect.

H.      Link Analysis – 2040/2045, Table 7 (PDF page 101): The 2040 daily model
volumes for SR-714/Martin Highway from I-95 to Citrus Boulevard (10,110)
is significantly less than the 2022 AADT (14,900). It should be noted that
the 2021 volume for this segment is 16,900 and the 2023 volume is 17,000.
Reasonableness check of the model output should be performed, and
adjustment should be made, if needed.

 
Recommendations for Technical Assistance Comment #2
 

1.       The Department recommends that the traffic analysis be revised and
coordination occur with the Department prior to adoption of the amendment to
incorporate the correct approach and data. This will allow the Department to
accurately assess impacts on State facilities and further identify and plan for
mitigation of any deficiencies.
 

2.       The County should consider multiple strategies to eliminate, reduce, or mitigate
the adverse impacts to State Road 714 and potentially to the I-95 interchange
intersections and ramps.  This could involve the following potential strategies.
 

Development phasing – This involves the incremental approval of portions
of the development based on the operational impacts on State Road 714
and the interchange, available programmed funding for construction, and
planned future funding allocations at the time of development. The
adoption of this amendment should address the potential of this strategy to
minimize adverse impacts to the state highway system.

 
Consultation with the Martin MPO regarding inclusion of a State Road 714
capacity project in the MPO 2050 LRTP update process and to identify it as
a priority for programming in the MPO List of Priority Projects.

 



Consultation with FDOT regarding advancement of an interchange
modification project for the State Road 714 / I-95 interchange in the SIS
Cost Feasible Plan 2035-2050 (2024 Edition) from the 2035-2040 time band
into the FDOT SIS Approved 2nd 5-Year Plan.

 
Update various applicable elements of the Martin County Comprehensive
Plan, including the Comprehensive Plan (CGMP) Figures, to address the
capacity needs associated with this amendment and other potential future
growth for internal consistency (Section 163.3177(2), F.S.).

 
 
We appreciate the opportunity to review proposed amendment changes prior to
adoption and request that a copy of the adopted amendment, along with the supporting
data and analysis, be transmitted within ten (10) working days after the second public
hearing to d4-planningreviews@dot.state.fl.us.
 
If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me.
 
 

 
Together our actions have the power to save lives!
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From: Paul Schilling
To: Samantha Lovelady
Subject: FW: FWC’s Comments on Martin County 24-02ESR (23-09) and Martin County 24-03ESR (23-10) – Martin Commerce

Park
Date: Friday, October 18, 2024 3:07:11 PM

 
 
Paul Schilling
Director
Growth Management Department
Martin County Board of County Commissioners
772-288-5473
 

From: Paul Schilling 
Sent: Friday, October 11, 2024 1:20 PM
To: Clyde Dulin <cdulin@martin.fl.us>; Joan Seaman <jseaman@martin.fl.us>; Maria Harrison
<mharriso@martin.fl.us>
Subject: FW: FWC’s Comments on Martin County 24-02ESR (23-09) and Martin County 24-03ESR (23-10)
– Martin Commerce Park
 
 
 
Paul Schilling
Director
Growth Management Department
Martin County Board of County Commissioners
772-288-5473
 

From: Irving, Robert <Robert.Irving@MyFWC.com> 
Sent: Friday, October 11, 2024 1:11 PM
To: Paul Schilling <pschilli@martin.fl.us>
Cc: Conservation Planning Services <conservationplanningservices@MyFWC.com>;
DCPexter@Commerce.fl.gov; Colletier, Nicolas <Nicolas.Colletier@MyFWC.com>;
Jhahner@ewconsultants.com; kenpruittp5@gmail.com
Subject: FWC’s Comments on Martin County 24-02ESR (23-09) and Martin County 24-03ESR (23-10) –
Martin Commerce Park
 

Dear Mr. Schilling:
 
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC) staff reviewed the proposed
comprehensive plan amendment in accordance with Chapter 163.3184(3), Florida Statutes.  We
have no comments, recommendations, or objections related to listed species and their habitat or
other fish and wildlife resources to offer on this amendment.
 
FWC staff appreciates the opportunity to review this project.  Please send any requests for further
information to ConservationPlanningServices@MyFWC.com. 
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Sincerely, 
 
Robert Irving
Land Use Planning Program Supervisor
Office of Conservation Planning Services
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission
Phone: (850) 354-3578
 
Martin County 24-02ESR_60099 / Martin County 24-03ESR_60101
 




